
AGENDA
MEETING VENUE:

Council Chamber Council Offices,
Priory Road, Spalding

Contact: Gregory Watkinson
Direct Dial: 01775 764599
e-mail: GWatkinson@Sholland.gov.uk

Date: 4 September 2018

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of the DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held in the Council Chamber, Council 
Offices, Priory Road, Spalding on Wednesday, 12 September 2018, commencing at 
6.30 pm at which your attendance is requested. 

Yours faithfully,

Anna Graves
Chief Executive

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence. 

2. Minutes 
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 
2018 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
5 - 10)

3. Declaration of Interests. 
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation.)

4. Chairman's Announcements. 

5. Announcements by Leader and Members of the Cabinet. 

6. Questions asked on notice under Standing Order 6. 

7. Questions asked without notice under Standing Order 7. 



8. Committee Minutes 
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and Panels:-

a)  Policy Development Panel 26 June 2018  (Pages 
11 - 18)

b)  Licensing Committee 19 July 2018  (Pages 
19 - 20)

c)  Committee of the Licensing Authority 19 July 2018  (Pages 
21 - 24)

d)  Planning Committee 25 July 2018  (Pages 
25 - 34)

9. Report from Cabinet meeting held on 11 September 2018 
To consider the recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of:

a. Amendment to the Capital programme (Cabinet minute 31/18) 
(Cabinet agenda item 9)

b. Q1 Finance Report 2018-19 (Cabinet minute 32/18) (Cabinet 
agenda item 10)

(To 
Follow)

10. Key Decision Plan 
To receive the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
35 - 40)

11. Memorandum of Agreement 
To consider proposed amendments to the legal agreement that 
underpins the shared management arrangements (report by the Deputy 
Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Growth and 
Commercialisation is enclosed).

(Pages 
41 - 44)

12. Compass Point Business Services Options 
To provide an update in respect of the decision of the Council at its 
meeting on 17 January 2018 (report by the Deputy Leader of the 
Council and Deputy Leader of the Cabinet is enclosed).

(Pages 
45 - 48)

13. Appointment of Independent Remuneration Panel 
The report seeks approval for the recommended appointments to the 
Independent Remuneration Panel (report of the Executive Director of 
Strategy and Governance is enclosed).

(Pages 
49 - 50)

14. Appointment of Deputy Electoral Registration Officer 
To appoint a Deputy Electoral Registration Officer (report of the 
Electoral Registration Officer is enclosed).

(Pages 
51 - 52)

15. Constitution 
To consider variation to the Constitution (report by the Monitoring Officer 
is enclosed).

(Pages 
53 - 70)



16. Reports from Councillors on Outside Bodies 
To receive the following reports from Councillors on Outside Bodies:

a)   Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire - May 2018 - 
To note (report by Councillor Brewis is enclosed).

(Pages 
71 - 74)

b)   Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire - July 2018 - 
To note (report by Councillor Brewis is enclosed).

(Pages 
75 - 78)

17. Nominations for Committees and other Seats and Proposed Changes to 
the Constitution. 
To receive, from political groups, nominations for any changes to 
Committees and other seats and to consider any proposed changes to 
the Constitution.

18. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the items(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 11 July 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

 
H Drury (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
J R Astill
F Biggadike
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland
T A Carter
A Casson
M G Chandler

L J Eldridge
R Gambba-Jones
J D McLean
A M Newton
G A Porter
J L Reynolds
M D Seymour
S-A Slade

E J Sneath
G J Taylor
J Tyrrell
J Whitbourn
C N Worth
S Wray

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors B Alcock, 
J Avery, M D Booth, G K Dark, R Grocock, J L King, C N Johnson, C J Lawton, 
A C Tennant, P A Williams and A R Woolf,  
 

In Attendance: Executive Manager - Governance  , Finance Accountant and 
Democratic Services Officer.

Councillor Drury in the Chair
Action By

18. MINUTES 

Consideration was given to the minutes of the Annual Meeting of 
South Holland District Council held on 16 May 2018.

DECISION:
The minutes were signed as a correct record. 

19. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were none. 

20. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

It was with great regret that the Chairman announced that Greg 
Turner, an employee of the council, had sadly passed away. On 
behalf of the Council, the Chairman passed on the Council’s 
thoughts and sincerest condolences to his family and friends.

The Chairman announced the news that the Chairman of the 
Council, Councillor Grocock, had recently fallen ill and been taken 
to hospital. On behalf of the Council, the Chairman passed on the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



- 2 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
11 July 2018

Council’s best wishes and hopes of a speedy recovery. 

21. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE 
CABINET. 

There were none. 

22. QUESTIONS ASKED ON NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER 
6 

There were none. 

23. QUESTIONS ASKED WITHOUT NOTICE UNDER STANDING 
ORDER 7 

Question to: Councillor Gambba-Jones
Question from: Councillor Newton
Subject: On the subject of parking meters in the Vine Street Car 
Park, Councillor Newton asked (i) what the full revenue 
implications were from the loss of the previous meter; (ii) when 
and by whom the decision had been taken to make new meters 
card-only machines; and (iii) whether customers’ bank details 
would be safe.

Councillor Gambba-Jones stated that it was difficult to provide a 
figure as losses were ongoing until the machine was replaced. 
However, the previous year’s taking from the machine was 
£45,000. It was further stated that the decision to procure card-
only machines had been contained in the transformation 
programme which had been to Cabinet and Full Council. 
Councillor Gambba-Jones then stated that there was no reason to 
believe that the card-readers would be any less secure than any 
other card reading device, but that there was a certain degree of 
responsibility on customers to ensure that they were careful with 
their bank details.

Question to: Councillor Porter
Question from: Councillor Brewis
Subject: At the LGA conference, Councillor Brewis had directed a 
question to the Right Honourable Vince Cable (MP) on the 
unfairness of rural funding, but had received no clear answer.

Councillor Porter responded that Vince Cable was unable to give 
a full answer to the question but there was a fairer funding review 
ongoing and the Council was awaiting the outcome.

Page 6



- 3 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
11 July 2018

 

24. COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Licensing Committee 19 April 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Committee of the Licensing Authority 19 April 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel 24 April 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Policy Development Panel 1 May 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Performance Monitoring Panel 2 May 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Planning Committee 9 May 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Governance and Audit 24 May 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Planning Committee 13 June 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Page 7



- 4 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
11 July 2018

 

25. REPORT FROM CABINET MEETING HELD ON 29 MAY 2018 

Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet on the 
2017/18 Financial Outturn.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance introduced the report and 
advised the Council that there was a £13,000 underspend. Public 
finances had continued to experience restraint, and this would 
likely continue.

The Portfolio Holder stressed the importance of building much 
needed homes and reminded members that this also resulted in 
an important revenue stream for the Council.

£41.7 million was held in investments, and £259,000 had been 
earned in interest. 

Members stated that they felt that there had been some slippage 
on the delivery of houses and asked if there could not be a push 
to reduce this now. The Portfolio Holder for Finance responded 
that steps were being taken to improve delivery of houses and 
that improvements were already being felt.

DECISION:

a) That the 2017/18 Financial Outturn report to Cabinet and 
Appendix A be noted;

b) That the contributions to and use of reserves be agreed in 
line with paragraph 5.5 and Appendix A, Tables 4 and 5 of 
that report; and

c) That the net General Fund underspend of £13,505 be 
transferred to the Council Tax Reserve. 

26. KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan.

DECISION:

That the Key Decision Plan be received. 

27. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2017/18 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director – 

Page 8



- 5 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
11 July 2018

Commercialisation (S151) which set out the Annual Treasury 
Management Review 2017/18. It was one of a number of annual 
treasury management reports which were scrutinised by the 
Governance and Audit Committee prior to submission to Council.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance introduced the report which 
included a summary of financial activity including investments. 
The Portfolio Holder reminded members that the Council’s 
investment in Welland Homes was now included in the list.

Members asked about the difference in budgeted and actual 
Capital Financial Requirement (CFR) figures and why exactly the 
difference existed. It was agreed that a response to this question 
would be circulated in the days following the meeting. (Please 
note the response attached to the end of these minutes)

DECISION:

That the Council receives and approves the Annual Treasury 
Management Review 2017/18 as required by the Local 
Government Act 2003
 

SH 

28. NOMINATIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND OTHER SEATS AND 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION. 

Licensing Committee and Committee of the Licensing Authority – 
Councillor Carter was stepping down from the position of Vice 
Chairman, and the Council agreed that  Councillor Tyrrell be 
appointed in Councillor Carter’s place.

Performance Monitoring Panel – Councillor Carter was being 
replaced by Councillor Grocock

Governance and Audit – Councillor Carter was being replaced by 
Councillor Harrison

Standards Panel – Councillor Astill was being appointed to the 
standards panel to fill a Conservative vacancy

 

29. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were none. 

30. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Page 9



- 6 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
11 July 2018

It was agreed that there was no need to exclude the press and 
public because the proposed exempt item was discussed and 
agreed under Agenda Item 2 without a need to exempt the press 
and public. 

31. RESTRICTED MINUTE 

The exempt minutes of the meeting of South Holland District 
Council held on 16 May 2018 were agreed as a correct record 
under Agenda Item 2 without a need to exclude the press and 
public

NOTE:
With reference to minute number 27, please find set out below the 
answer to the question raised:

The Capital Finance Requirement (CFR) will only increase where 
there is capital expenditure that is unfinanced. For SHDC, loans 
to Welland Homes are the only unfinanced capital expenditure, 
therefore the difference between budgeted and actual figures on 
the CFR is the difference between budgeted and actual loans to 
Welland Homes.
 

(The meeting ended at 6.52 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 10



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Meeting 
Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 26 June 2018 at 6.30 
pm.

PRESENT

A R Woolf (Chairman)
J D McLean (Vice-Chairman)

D Ashby
J R Astill
F Biggadike
L J Eldridge

P C Foyster
A Harrison
J L Reynolds
S-A Slade

E J Sneath
J Tyrrell

In Attendance:  Portfolio Holder – Place, Portfolio Holder – Housing and Health, Place 
Manager and Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Booth, 
H Drury, J L King and A M Newton 

Action By
1. MINUTES 

Policy Development Panel – 1 May 2018

AGREED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Policy Development Panel 
held on 1 May 2018 be agreed as a correct record.

Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel – 25 January 2018

AGREED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance 
Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 25 
January 2018 be agreed as a correct record.

Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel – 24 April 2018

AGREED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance 
Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 24 April 
2018 be agreed as a correct record.

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 11

Agenda Item 8.a)



- 2 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 26 June 
2018

3. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were none.

4. TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were no tracking of recommendations to consider. 

5. ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL 

There were none.

6. KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan published on 4 
June 2018.

AGREED:

That the Key Decision Plan be noted.

7. POLICY REGISTER 

Consideration was given to the Policy Register Dated 13 June 
2018

AGREED:

That the Policy Register was noted

8. STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which sought to update the Policy Development Panel on 
the draft revised Street Naming and Numbering Policy.

The Portfolio Holder for Place presented the report.

The Portfolio Holder for Place recognised the longevity of the 
policy and stated that the biggest opportunity brought by this was 
the introduction of charges for exercise of consulting with various 
bodies about proposals for names. It was stated that these 
charges were not for profit, but simply to reclaim the costs.

Officers added that they welcomed feedback for review of the 
draft to be ready for the final presentation in September.

Page 12



- 3 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 26 June 
2018

Members stated that they knew of one street that was named 
differently at either end. Members wanted to know what the policy 
was on such errors. The Portfolio Holder for Place stated that this 
should have been rectified at the time of implementation but 
stated that residents can submit a complaint and the relevant 
steps can then be taken. He offered to investigate this particular 
case.

Councillors stated that one of the aims of PDP was to shorten and 
simplify policies, they therefore stated that they would appreciate 
seeing some of the unnecessary material cut out. Officers stated 
that the vast majority of the policy was still relevant and valid, but 
they asked that members contact them to highlight areas they felt 
could be cut/simplified.

Members stated that it was a problem with houses having hard-to-
find numbers. They therefore asked if a specification could be 
made to make it so a house had to display a number. Officers and 
The Portfolio Holder for Place stated that this was already the 
case, but that here was no regulation to allow a stipulation to be 
made as to what number should be displayed.

The Chairman advised of some words that were on the list of both 
acceptable and not acceptable suffixes. Officers stated that they 
would look into this.

AGREED:

a. That members of the Panel notify officers of any areas of 
the policy which could be cut or simplified while still 
maintaining the legal integrity of the document; and

b. That the final revised policy be considered by Policy 
Development Panel on 19 September 2018 prior to it being 
considered by Cabinet.

ES, CB 

9. HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director – 
Place. Which sought to provide an update to Houses in Multiple 
Occupation.

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Health introduced the report. 
It was stated that the Spalding Voice had featured an article about 
the prosecution of The Chequers, which it was hoped would prove 
an example of enforcement

Page 13



- 4 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 26 June 
2018

It was stated that the new regulation was removing the stipulation 
that a HMO had to be a property which was 3 or more stories.

Phase 1 of the changes was due to begin in October which was 
when the Policy would be implemented. Landlords who were not 
previously subject to licenses would not be prosecuted 
immediately and would have a grace period to obtain a licence. It 
was stated that some reports would have to go to Council for 
approval but that, generally, progress was good.

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Health stated that she would 
ask that members feed back to officers if they knew of any HMOs

The Chairman stated that he was pleased with the information 
given

Members asked what happened to individuals living in properties 
which were prosecuted. The Portfolio Holder for Housing and 
Health stated that they would need to vacate the property, as it 
would be deemed unsafe, but that these people would be pointed 
toward housing advice and given the necessary support to aid 
them in finding new accommodation. Officers stated that here was 
a homelessness team and policies in place to resolve such 
issues. Officers also stated that when enforcement took place it 
was hoped to be about making the property owner comply rather 
than to deny a licence immediately.

Members asked that because the new HMOs would be so difficult 
to find, if there were any other identifying factors that could be 
used to find offending properties. Officers stated that they would 
rely heavily on individuals such as Post Office staff and 
neighbours and that HMO properties were often uncared for and 
run-down, more so than neighbouring properties. The Chairman 
stated that refuse collection staff could also be a valuable 
resource for identifying such properties.

Members asked a number of questions to Officers;

 How the policy was being publicised.

 If the new figure of 1200 HMOs in the district included the 
properties which would fall under the new legislation and if  
these buildings would be written to to inform the owners 
that they would need to comply; and

 If  employment agencies would be notified and told what 
the changes were. 

Page 14



- 5 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 26 June 
2018

Officers stated that they would get back to members with the 
answers to these questions

Members asked if this policy would include Caravan sites used to 
house workers. Officers stated that they would not be included 
and that this was a separate type of license

The Chairman asked when the new legislation would be 
implemented, the Place Manager stated that the 1st phase would 
begin on 1st October 2018 but that she would get back to 
Members on this to confirm.

The Chairman asked that the policy document be brought to the 
meeting in September

AGREED:

a. That the report be noted.

b. That the Houses in Multiple Occupation policy be brought 
to the Policy Development Panel on 19 September 2018

ES 

ES, DS, 
GW 

10. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY POLICY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director – 
Strategy and Governance which sought to present the draft of the 
Council’s Equality and Diversity policy to the Policy Development 
Panel for review.

Officers stated that the last update was in 2013 and that the new 
draft had been simplified and shortened significantly.

The Vice-Chairman  wanted to thank officers for their hard work 
on the policy with regard to shortening and simplifying the 
document. The Chairman wished to echo this sentiment.

AGREED:

That the Policy Development Panel recommend the draft Equality 
and Diversity Policy to Cabinet.

11. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION POLICY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director – 
Strategy and Governance which sought to present the draft of the 
Council’s Freedom of Information policy to the Policy 
Development Panel for review.

Page 15



- 6 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 26 June 
2018

It was stated that the previous review of this policy was in June 
2014. The document linked to the relevant act and therefore was 
simple and short.

The Vice-Chairman  wanted to thank officers for their hard work 
on the policy with regard to shortening and simplifying the 
document. The Chairman wished to echo this sentiment.

AGREED:
That the Policy Development Panel recommend the adoption of 
the draft Freedom of Information Policy to Cabinet. 

12. POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the Policy 
Development Panel. The Work Programme consisted of two 
separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the future 
Panel meetings along with proposed items for consideration, and 
the second setting out the Task Groups that had been identified 
by the Panel.

Public Open Spaces Task Group

The Task Group was expecting that the Senior Planning Lawyer 
would be at the next meeting to provide information. It was further 
stated that after this had taken place, the Task Group could be 
closed.

Data protection

The Data Protection and Retention Task Group was currently on 
hold but was still active, awaiting a new meeting.

Planning Design

The Portfolio Holder for Place stated that it was hoped that the 
new local plan would be completed at some point before the end 
of the year, at which point this Task Group could commence.

HMOs task group

It was agreed that this could be brought off the Work Programme 
in September after the HMO policy had been presented to PDP. 
Officers stated a review could take place 6 months after the 
implementation on 1 October 2018, members agreed that this 
was a good idea. The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Health 

Page 16



- 7 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 26 June 
2018

said that in September’s update, best practice photos could be 
provided alongside the report.

It was agreed that the HMO policy would be presented to PDP on 
19 September 2018.

It was agreed that the HMO policy would be reviewed 6 months 
after the new legislation was implemented on 1 October 2018.

Leisure Facilities Task Group

Members asked why the leisure facilities Task Group was still on 
the work programme. The Chairman stated that this was still 
active and had never gone away. Officers stated that as a holding 
position a new short term leisure contract was out to tender. This 
position enables the council to work with local partners to carry 
out a ‘full options appraisal’ for long-term provision of leisure 
services in the district. 

Officers stated that the upcoming new leisure contract was far 
more robust than the previous version which set out clear 
performance standards to be met by the potential supplier.

Officers stated that tenders were to be submitted in August 2018. 
Officers agreed that the Chairman and Vice Chairman would be 
briefed on any further information after this date.

AGREED:

a. That the HMO policy be presented to PDP on 19 
September 2018.

b. That HMOs Task group be removed from the Work 
Programme after the HMO policy had been presented to 
PDP on 19 September 2018.

c. That the HMO policy be reviewed 6 months after the new 
legislation was implemented on 1 October 2018; and

d. That the Work Programme be noted.

DS, ES, 
GW 

DS, GW 

ES, DS, 
GW 

13. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

There were none

Page 17



- 8 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 26 June 
2018

(The meeting ended at 7.39 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 18



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the LICENSING COMMITTEE held in the Meeting Room 1, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 19 July 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

A Harrison (Chairman)
J Tyrrell (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
F Biggadike
M D Booth
A Casson

M G Chandler
G K Dark
H Drury
C N Johnson

J L King
A M Newton
J Whitbourn
S Wray

In Attendance:  Licensing and Business Support Shared Manager , Licensing Team 
Leader and Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors T A Carter 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Carter

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 April 2018 were signed as a correct record 
subject to the following changes:

 The word “she” used on page 4 of the minutes to be changed to “they”
 Remove the word “imminently” from page 4 of the minutes.

4. LICENSING UPDATE 

It was agreed that this was to be incorporated into the licensing training.

5. MEMBER TRAINING SESSION 

Members discussed the need for training and agreed to hold the training session 
outside the meeting on a separate occasion.

6. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

There were none.

Page 19

Agenda Item 8.b)



- 2 -

LICENSING COMMITTEE - 19 July 2018

(The meeting ended at 6.39 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 20



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY held in 
the Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 19 July 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

A Harrison (Chairman)
J Tyrrell (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
F Biggadike
M D Booth
A Casson

M G Chandler
G K Dark
H Drury
C N Johnson

J L King
A M Newton
J Whitbourn
S Wray

In Attendance:  Licensing and Business support shared manager,  Licensing Team 
Leader and Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors T A Carter 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Carter

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none.

3. MINUTES 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee of the Licensing Authority held on 19 
April 2018 were agreed as a correct record.

4. GAMBLING ACT POLICY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – People and Public 
Protection which sought to present a draft revised version of the Gambling Policy 
(Statement of Principles) for consideration prior to it being issued for consultation.

Heather Lawson introduced the policy. It was stated that there were 3 objectives:

i) Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime and disorder or being used to support crime.

ii) Ensuring that gambling was conducted in a fair and open way.
iii) Protect children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 

gambling.

The act specified a list of authorities which must be consulted in the obtaining of a 
gambling license. This list consisted of:

Page 21

Agenda Item 8.c)



- 2 -

COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING 
AUTHORITY - 19 July 2018

 Parish Councils
 Lincolnshire Police
 Lincolnshire Trading Standards
 Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue
 Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children’s Board
 MP
 SHDC Planning Department
 Alcoholics anonymous
 Shine Mental Health Services
 Mencap
 MIND
 BACTA
 Bingo Association
 British Bookmakers
 British Beer and Pub Assocaition
 British Institute of innkeeping
 Other Lincolnshire District Councils
 Adult Gaming Centre, Family entertainment Centre and Bingo premises 

licence holders within South Holland; and
 Gambling Commission.

The policy would go out for consultation for 12 weeks on the Monday following this 
meeting. It would then be presented to the Policy Development Panel (PDP). The 
closing date for the consultation was 12 October 2018. On 8 November 2018  the 
consultation would be considered by the Committee of the licensing Authority to 
discuss potential amendments. On 28 November the revised policy would be adopted 
at Full Council and on 31 January 2019 the policy would come into force.

It was stated that any premises seeking a license would have to perform a risk 
assessment.

It was noted that staff at applying premises would need to have training to identify 
‘vulnerable’ people.

Members asked if the policy included shops which sold lottery tickets and scratch 
cards. Officers stated that the policy did not cover this.

Members asked that the sentence on page 2 of the policy be simplified which 
outlined the limit upon how many gaming machines are allowed in alcohol premises.

The Licensing & Business Support Shared Manager stated that although the policy 
was somewhat difficult to read, a lot of this was down to a large portion of the policy 
being statutory which could not be adjusted to any great degree. Therefore, officers 
felt that there was no way that this policy could be shortened further.

AGREED:

Page 22



- 3 -

COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING 
AUTHORITY - 19 July 2018

That the Committee considered the amended Council’s Gambling Policy (Statement 
of Principles) as shown in Appendix A of the report, prior to it being issued for 
consultation.

5. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

The Chair of the Committee wished to welcome Councillor Tyrrell as the new vice-
chairman.

(The meeting ended at 6.57 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



- 7 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 25 July 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

R Gambba-Jones (Chairman)
J Avery (Vice-Chairman)

B Alcock
D Ashby
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland

H Drury
L J Eldridge
C J Lawton
M D Seymour

A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
P A Williams

In Attendance:  Development Manager, Senior Planning Lawyer, Planning Officer and 
Lead Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors R Grocock and 
J L Reynolds 

14. MINUTES 

The Committee considered the minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2018.

DECISION:

The minutes were signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

15. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

Councillor Seymour and Councillor Drury declared an interest in relation to 
application H16-0210-18 and stated their intention to leave the Council Chamber for 
consideration of that item.

Councillor Astill stated that he did not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 
application H09-0304-18 but in the interests of transparency he wished it to be noted 
that he worked with an objector to the application.

16. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (STANDING 
ORDERS). 

There were no questions.

Page 25

Agenda Item 8.d)



- 8 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25 July 2018

17. H16-0210-18 

(Councillors Drury and Seymour left the room at 6.35p.m.)

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16-0210-18 – Activ Property 
Management Ltd.

Full application for the demolition of existing class B1 
commercial building and construction of 26 new 
dwellings and associated external works including 
landscaping at Broad Street Business centre, 10 
Broad Street, Spalding.

The Senior Planning Lawyer reminded Councillors that this item had been deferred.  
Of the two Councillors acting as substitutes at the meeting, Councillor Astill was 
present for the previous discussion and so was able to vote. Councillor Casson was 
not present and so was not able to vote.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members. The Development Manager 
referred to the new National Planning Policy Framework that had been received and 
how it related to this application.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. Issues considered included car parking and ‘right 
to light’ of neighbouring properties. It was noted that if the application was permitted, 
objectors were able to challenge the developer directly regarding right to light.

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted subject to the conditions listed at Section 9.0 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Astill, seconded by Councillor Tennant)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application with the 
council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

 Supporter  - Mr M Clark (Applicant)
 Objector – Mr N Casswell (Spalding Gentleman’s Society)

(Councillor Brewis wished it to be recorded in the minutes that he voted against the 
recommendation in the report.)

18. H06-0246-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H06-0246-18 – Mr G Franklin Full application for a change of use from Public 

House to two dwellings at the Chequers, 3 Main 
Street, Gedney Dyke.

Page 26



- 9 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25 July 2018

The Chairman reported that this item had been withdrawn from the agenda.

19. H09-0304-18 

(Councillor Seymour returned to the meeting at 7.05 p.m. and Councillor Drury 
returned to the meeting at 7.06 p.m. Councillor Astill left the meeting at 7.05 p.m.)

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H09 -0304-18 – Mr R Bradley Full application for a proposed residential 

development (retrospective) at 28A Battlefields Lane 
South, Holbeach, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. Councillors noted that the application had been 
considered previously and that the developer had undertaken work beyond that 
required by the planning permission as they wanted to ensure that they had the 
ability to sell the property without issue of a neighbourhood dispute. 

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted subject to the wording of condition 3 being 
amended to require the landscaping to be undertaken within 4 months of the date of 
the permission and the other conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the report

(Moved by Councillor Tyrell, seconded by Councillor Eldridge)

20. H16-1217-17 

(Councillor Astill returned to the meeting at 7.15 p.m)

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16 – 1217-17 S73A Continuation for a Business park, hotel, public 

house/restaurant, conference and function centre, 
petrol filling station, restaurant/café with ancillary 
retail together with associated landscaping, access, 
highways, parking, drainage, utilities and services 
and infrastructure works – approved under H16-
0025-15.  Modification of Condition 2 to allow 
amendments to previously approved plans on land at 
Goodison Road A16 and B1173 Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Page 27



- 10 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25 July 2018

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. It was noted that Condition 5 in section 9 of the 
report limited the conference facility to house no more than 400 delegates at any one 
time.  Members supported the application and the increased choice of facility that this 
would bring to the area and did not wish to curtail the development by restricting 
delegate numbers. It was agreed that condition 5 be amended to remove the limit on 
the number of delegates and instead restrict the floorspace to 2500 square metres.

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted subject to the removal of the restriction on the 
number of delegates and replace it with a restriction on florrspace to 2500 square 
metres in Condition 5 and the other conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the report.

(Moved by Councillor Drury, seconded by Councillor Tyrell)

21. H16-0867-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16 – 0867-17 – United Lincolnshire 
Hospitals NHS Trust & Lidl UK GmbH

Full application for the erection of a class A1 food 
store, new access, service yard, car parking, 
landscaping and associated works at Former 
Welland Hospital Site/Former Garage, Holbeach 
Road, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.  

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. Some Councillors expressed the view that the 
site should be used for housing with a supermarket better located in a town centre.

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted subject to conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the 
report. 

(Moved by Councillor Tennant, seconded by Councillor Astill)

22. H16-0853-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16 – 0853 -17 – United Lincolnshire 
Hospital NHS Trust

Outline application for a residential development for 
up to 36 residential units and associated works on 
the former Welland Hospital Site, Holbeach 
Road/Roman Bank, Spalding.

Page 28



- 11 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25 July 2018

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. Councillors welcomed the application for 100% 
affordable housing. However, some Councillors expressed concern regarding the 
vehicle entry on to Holbeach Road but it was noted that there were no highway 
objections from Lincolnshire County Council. It was also noted that the use of plant 
and equipment would be restricted in order to avoid causing a nuisance to nearby 
properties.

DECISION:

That outline planning permission be granted, subject to the applicant first entering 
into a Section 106 Planning Obligation to secure 100% affordable housing and the 
conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the report

(Moved by Councillor Drury, seconded by Councillor Lawton)

23. H18-0435-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H18 – 0435-18 – J Putterill and Son Outline application for a residential development of 

approximately 60 dwellings on the land north of 
Nightingale Way, Sutton Bridge. 

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. 

In discussing the application, Councillors noted that as the Council did not have a five 
year land supply and the site had proven to be sequentially preferable, it was 
recommended that planning permission be granted.  Councillors queried whether 
more weight could be given to the emerging Local Plan as it neared adoption but 
accepted that at the moment the Council had an existing plan that it was required to 
abide by.

Councillors also discussed the impact that construction traffic could have on the 
occupants of Nightingale Close.  It was noted that conditions 6 and 13 imposed 
restrictions on construction and hours of working. The Committee was keen, 
however, for construction to start as soon as possible and requested that Condition 1 
be amended to require the submission of an application for the approval of reserved 
matters within 12 months.

Page 29



- 12 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25 July 2018

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted, subject to the applicant first entering into a 
Section 106 Planning Obligation to secure:

 The provision of 25% of the 60 dwellings as affordable
 Education contributions
 NHS healthcare contributions

And the conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the report, including amending condition 1 
to require the submission of an application for the approval of reserved matters within 
12 months.

(Moved by Councillor Tennant, Seconded by Councillor Drury)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application with the 
council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

 Supporter – Mr L Russell (Agent)
 Objector – Mr C J Brandon-King (Resident)

(Councillor Brewis wished it to be recorded in the minutes that he voted against the 
recommendation).

The Committee adjourned for a comfort break at 8.47 p.m. The Committee 
reconvened at 9.00 p.m.

24. H14-0956-16 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H14 – 0956 -16 – Messrs AJ and RJ 
Cooke

Full application for a proposed residential 
development of 10 dwellings at Spalding Road, 
Pinchbeck, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

The Senior Planning Lawyer advised that this application had been considered 
previously by the Committee. Councillors Astill, Avery and Brewis were not present 
on that occasion and so were not able to vote on this matter. 

Members explored the details of the application in light of prevailing policies and 
guidance. 

Page 30



- 13 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25 July 2018

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted, subject to a legal agreement for a financial 
contribution towards affordable housing in lieu of on-site provision and the conditions 
listed at Section 9.0 of the report

(Moved by Councillor Drury, Seconded by Councillor Tennant)

25. H02-0054-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H02-0054-18 – Mr C Sharpe, Mrs L 
Fox and Mrs E Skinner

Outline application for a proposed residential 
development on the land at 18 Low Road/Plank 
Drove, Crowland.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. It was noted that no highway objections had been 
received from Lincolnshire County Council. However, Councillors wished there 
concerns regarding the narrowness of the road to be passed to Lincolnshire County 
Council.

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted, subject to the applicant first entering into a 
Section 106 Planning Obligation to secure:

 The provision of 25% Affordable Housing
 Education contributions
 NHS healthcare contributions

And the conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the report.

(Moved by Councillor Drury, Seconded by Councillor Eldridge)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application with the 
council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

 Supporter – Mr J Dadge (Applicant)

26. H22-0398-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H22-0398-18 – Housing Development 
Project Manager

Full application for a proposed residential 
development comprising 34 dwellings on the land off 
Small Drove, Weston, Spalding.

Page 31



- 14 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25 July 2018

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. 

The local member for the application attended the meeting and spoke in favour of the 
application.

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted subject to the conditions listed at Section 9.0 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Casson, Seconded by Councillor Lawton)

27. H22-0434-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H22-0434018 – Mr A Verrells Full application for double garage with office above at 

Carnaby House, 202a High Road, Weston.  

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members considered the details of the application in light of prevailing policies and 
guidance. 

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted subject to the conditions listed at Section 9.0 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Casson, Seconded by Councillor Drury)

28. H01-0560-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H01 – 0560-18 n – Mr J Wilson-White Full application for a rear single-storey flat roofed 

accessible bedroom extension at 2 Parkin Road, 
Cowbit, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Page 32



- 15 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25 July 2018

Members explored the details of the application in light of prevailing policies and 
guidance. 

DECISION:

That Planning Permission be granted, subject to the conditions listed at Section 9.0 
of the report.

(Moved by Councillor  Casson, Seconded by Councillor Eldridge)

29. HOLBEACH FOOD ENTERPRISE ZONE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER 

The Committee received a report by the Executive Programme Manager  - 
Infrastructure and Housing Delivery which provided an update on the results of the 
public consultation exercise surrounding the proposed Holbeach Food Enterprise 
Zone Local Development Order and sought adoption of the Order following 
ratification at Full Council.

Members recalled that, on 8 November 2017, Planning Committee approved the 
Draft Holbeach Food Enterprise Zone Local Development Order (and Statement of 
Reasons in Support) for publication and comment.

The public consultation exercise had taken place and Councillors considered the 
results and conclusions. 

It was noted that, in the context of the proposed Holbeach Local Development Order 
(LDO), the Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013 removed the requirement to consult 
with the Secretary of State to the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) prior to adoption.  In effect this enabled the Council, in its role 
as Local Planning Authority, to approve the LDO immediately.  There did, however, 
remain a requirement to notify the Secretary of State, through the National Planning 
Casework Unit (NPCU), as soon as practicable after adoption. The Order would 
become effective from the date on which it is adopted by the Council.  

DECISION:

That Planning Committee

a) notes the results of public consultation;
b) endorses proposed minor changes to the Holbeach Food Enterprise Zone 

Local Development Order;
c) agrees to adopt the Order, without amendment; and
d) recommends that the Order is ratified at Full Council.

30. PLANNING UPDATES. 

There were no planning updates.

Page 33



- 16 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25 July 2018

31. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

There were no urgent items.

(The meeting ended at 10.00 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 34



1

KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 16 August 2018

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 10.

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Sep 
2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract

To award a contract. Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 

Meetings and discussions. 

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Oct 
2018

P
age 36



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process Meetings and discussions

Officer Decisions Before 
30 Oct 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Car Parking 
Recommendatio
ns

To review the recommendations for 
carp parking provision in SHDC owned 
car parks prior to statutory consultation

Car Parking 
Recommendatio
ns

Cabinet 20 Nov 2018

P
age 37



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Lincolnshire 
Waste 
Partnership - 
Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy

To consider the adoption of the Joint 
Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy

Lincolnshire 
Waste 
Partnership - 
Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy

Cabinet 12 Feb 2019

*Cabinet Membership

P
age 38



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

5

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor T Carter (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C Johnson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 39

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Nick Worth, Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Growth and 
Commercialisation 

To: South Holland District Council Wednesday, 12 September 2018

(Author: Mark Stinson, Executive Manager - Governance)

Subject Memorandum of Agreement

Purpose: To consider proposed amendments to the legal agreement that underpins the 
shared management arrangements

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the wording of the indemnity clauses contained within the Memorandum of Agreement 
(“the Agreement”) are redrafted to ensure clarity;

2) That, subject to recommendation 4 below, the Agreement be amended to ensure that where it 
proves impossible to share senior managers fairly in accordance with clause 8.6 of the 
Agreement, the councils will work together in good faith to ensure that identified posts continue 
to be placed at the disposal of the other council until a reasonable period has been allowed for 
recruitment to take place;

3) That, subject to recommendation 4 below, a provision be added to the Agreement requiring 
that, prior to one of the councils approving any changes to the terms and conditions of 
employment of any shared officer(s) (including but not limited to pay) that council must first 
consult the other council prior to approving the same;

4) That the Legal Team ensures that recommendations 2 and 3 above are consistent with shared 
officers’ contracts of employment and all relevant staffing policies and procedures; and

5) That the Executive Director for Strategy and Governance be granted delegated authority, in 
consultation with the Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Growth and 
Commercialisation, to amend the Agreement in accordance with the above recommendations.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Memorandum of Agreement is the written contract between the two Councils which 
sets the framework for the shared management structure, together with the rights and 
responsibilities of the two councils. Whilst a review is not due, three areas have been 
identified for consideration.

Page 41

Agenda Item 11.



Indemnity

1.2 The Agreement provides that, should the shared management arrangements be 
terminated, the costs that result are to be shared equally. The councils each indemnify the 
other against their half of any liabilities. This indemnity is broad to ensure it also captures 
any third party costs associated with the shared management team and its subsequent 
termination. An example might be that one council (‘the commissioning council’) has 
commissioned external services in support of the shared management team, such as a 
comprehensive training package. If that training needs to be cancelled or reduced in 
scope due to termination of the shared management arrangements, then the other council 
will have to pay half of any termination cost even though the contract with the service 
provider is with only the commissioning council.

1.3 The Indemnity provisions are a little clumsily worded, so it is proposed that they be tidied 
up. It is possible to limit the indemnity – e.g. to cover only certain types of cost or by 
limiting them to costs identified by the councils during a given period (e.g. the notice 
period), but it is worth noting that the original clause was drafted so as to ensure that all 
relevant costs arising as a result of termination are shared equally.

Allocation of shared management team on termination

1.4 Should the shared management arrangements be terminated at some point in the future, 
clause 8.6 of the Agreement requires the councils to co-operate for mutual advantage, to 
seek an amicable and equitable financial settlement, and to agree a fair and reasonable 
allocation of the shared management team between the two councils – recognising that 
there may need to be a transfer of managers from one council employment to the other. 
The clause has always been subject to the employment law rights of individual officers. 
An officer employed by one of the councils cannot be forced to take up employment at the 
other.

1.5 Whilst the councils may do everything they can to act fairly in this regard, certain senior 
managers may not be prepared to change employer. In addition, in recent years 
recruitment to shared posts has been undertaken exclusively by Breckland Council. This 
means that there is currently an imbalance in the number of officers employed by the 
respective councils. 

1.6 Members may feel that some contingency provisions are necessary to ensure that, in a 
situation where the majority of shared managers are employed by one of the councils, or 
indeed where such imbalance does not exist but it nevertheless remains difficult to ensure 
that each council has sufficient skills in key areas, either council will if necessary continue 
to place identified staff at the disposal of the other. This should be for a reasonable 
duration beyond the end of the shared management arrangements to allow time for the 
other council to establish its separate senior management team.

Setting of senior management pay and conditions

1.7 As a matter of employment and contract law, only the employing council can set the pay 
and conditions of its staff. As each council will have a clear interest in the pay and 
conditions attaching to shared officers employed by the other council, members may wish 
to consider the inclusion of an informal consultation process in the Agreement, whilst 
recognising that the employing authority cannot fetter its discretion in determining pay and 
conditions of service.

Page 42



2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To approve in full the proposed changes to the Agreement.

2.2 To approve in part the proposed changes to the Agreement.

2.3 To consider further or alternative changes to the Agreement.

2.4 Not to approve any changes to the Agreement.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 The Memorandum of Agreement sets out the legal basis of the shared management 
arrangements. It is important that the Agreement remains robust.

3.2 Approving the proposed amendments will bring greater certainty as to the parties’ 
respective rights and liabilities.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 An updated and improved Agreement that is robust and provides greater clarity as to the 
parties' respective rights and liabilities.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional 
& Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & Diversity/Human 
Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; Safeguarding; 
Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; Other. 
Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of 
these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 The operation of the shared management structure is underpinned by a legal contractual 
relationship. It is in the interests of both parties to express their agreement in a formal 
written contract as this brings a greater degree of certainty to the arrangements. The 
Agreement requires Council approval at both authorities.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 The Agreement is a legally enforceable contract which sets out the various rights and 
liabilities of the parties.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 The Agreement underpins the shared management team which in turn helps the Council to 
achieve its corporate priorities.

Page 43



5.5 Risk Management 

5.5.1 A clear Agreement, updated regularly to reflect the prevailing circumstances, reduces risk 
to both authorities.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All Wards.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None – but see earlier reports to Council

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Mark Stinson, Executive Manager for Governance
Telephone Number: 07899 061277
Email: mark.stinson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Page 44

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Nick Worth, Deputy Leader of the Council
Councillor Malcolm Chandler, Deputy Leader of the Cabinet

To: South Holland District Council – Wednesday, 12 September 2018

(Author: Mark Stinson Executive Manager - Governance)

Subject Compass Point Business Services Options

Purpose: To provide an update in respect of the decision of the Council at its meeting 
on 17 January 2018

Recommendation(s):

1) That the Council notes the current position and agrees that it will give consideration to a 
contract extension after such time as Compass Point Business Services (“CPBS”) has 
submitted its business case for transformation;

2) That the Council endorses the instruction to CPBS (i) to provide a transformation business 
case with sufficient options to achieve the 12% efficiency that Grant Thornton advised is 
achievable; and (ii) that the transformation business case indicates whether the Board 
supports each option together with a rationale for such view;

3) That the transformation business case is reviewed by the Partnership Board, with any 
potential amendments being referred to the CPBS Board for approval, prior to any 
recommendations being considered by the Council.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 At its meeting on 17 January 2018, the Council agreed to enter into a new five year 
contract with CPBS (with an option to extend for a further five years). The new contract was 
to be completed on 31 July 2018, but this was conditional upon CPBS preparing a business 
case for transformation by 31 May 2018 which would deliver a level of efficiency saving, 
and resulting reduced cost base, to the satisfaction of this Council and East Lindsey District 
Council (“ELDC”).

1.2 CPBS were unable to meet the 31 May 2018 deadline, and the Council’s decision to extend 
the contract has therefore expired. The reasons given by CPBS included the length of time 
required to understand future options for staff terms and conditions, investment needs, a 
change in services provided to ELDC’s leisure company (Magna Vitae), understanding joint 
working opportunities for both Councils, a staffing structure review, growth plans and 
potential rebranding. If the contract is to be extended, there will be a requirement for this 
Council and ELDC to make fresh decisions.

Page 45

Agenda Item 12.



1.3 The decision of the Council on 17 January to extend the contract also included a number of 
associated decisions. These associated decisions were not reliant upon completion of the 
business case for transformation, and can be summarised as:

1.3.1 Preparation of the legal paperwork by external lawyers – though this cannot be 
actioned until the terms of the new arrangements are agreed, which rely upon 
completion of the business case for transformation.

1.3.2 Amending the governance arrangements by establishing a Partnership 
Group (comprising officers and members of both Councils); establishing 
Client Liaison meetings; and adding two non-voting advisors to the 
Company Board – the Partnership Group and the Client Liaison meetings have 
been established and initial meetings have taken place. The Partnership Group is 
currently discussing the proposals for Board Advisors.

1.3.3 Changes to SHDC’s Board membership – completed.  

1.4 At the first meeting of the Partnership Group, it was agreed that CPBS needs to submit its 
business case for transformation, and that the CPBS Board needs to cost sufficient options 
to achieve the 12% efficiency that Grant Thornton have advised is achievable. The 
Partnership Group also suggested that the Board be invited to indicate whether it supports 
each option together with a rationale (such as a risk/benefit analysis). 

1.5 In order to ensure that progress is made in a reasonable timeframe, CPBS has been 
instructed to provide its business case by September and it is proposed that no further 
decision be made by the Council until the business case has been received. It is further 
suggested that the Partnership Group considers the draft business case, makes any 
comments that it may have, and then a final version is approved by the Board prior to any 
further report to the councils.

1.6 It is anticipated that the Partnership Group will meet in mid-October. This will enable the 
business case to be presented to Council at its meeting on 28 November. Subject to both 
Councils and the Company Board being satisfied with the proposals, it is likely that the 
Council will be invited to agree an extension to the contract from April 2019.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 The principle of extending the arrangements was approved by the Council at its meeting on 
1 November 2017, and was approved in greater detail at the meeting of 17 January 2018. 
Subject to the councils being satisfied with the business case, once produced, an extension 
to the contract remains the recommended option.

2.2 However, for completeness, it is worth reminding the Council that three options were 
reviewed by Grant Thornton:

 To continue the company arrangement as currently in place.
 To continue the company arrangement and consider any recommendations to 

update arrangements and further improve outcomes.
 To disestablish the company and consider an alternative shared service model of 

provision.

Page 46



2.3 Grant Thornton did not include a detailed review of a fourth option of closing the company 
and bringing services back “in house” as disaggregated functions as this was seen as 
being a last resort which would only be brought forward if the options outlined above were 
not recommended (or practical) and it became clear that the Councils wished to part 
company. This would then trigger the need for a further significant investment in work to 
prepare for such an outcome which would take an extended period of time to conclude. The 
outcome of the work undertaken with Grant Thornton concluded that it is in both Councils’ 
interests to continue with, and further build upon, the company arrangement beyond 2020.

2.4 The work previously undertaken by Grant Thornton incorporated a high level financial 
review of the company and concluded that there still remain opportunities for further 
reductions to the cost base of service delivery thus continuing the contribution to meeting 
the overall budget challenges faced by the respective Councils. This was a fundamental 
issue in Grant Thornton’s conclusion that retention of the company remained the best 
future option for the Councils. These opportunities are to be set out in the Transformation 
Plan for the company and laid out in annual Business Plans which will continue to come 
forward to the Councils for consideration.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To agree arrangements for the continued delivery of Council services by CPBS beyond the 
timeframe of the current agreements which expire in 2020.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 There are a number of benefits to extending the contract – these are set out in the report to 
the Council in January 2018. Waiting for the business case before approving the contract 
extension will provide a clear incentive to CPBS to bring forward its proposals at the 
earliest opportunity.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Constitutional & Legal

5.1.1 Under the Constitution, this is a decision reserved to Full Council.

5.2 Contracts

5.2.1 Once a final decision is made, the proposals (if approved) will result in a number of 
contractual changes. 

5.3 Financial

Page 47



5.3.1 There are no financial implications for the Council in this report. Previous reports have set 
out the likely financial implications of the Grant Thornton proposals, the contract extension 
and the addition of Advisors to the CPBS Board.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All

7.0 ACRONYMS

7.1 CPBS – Compass Point Business Services
ELDC – East Lindsey District Council

Background papers:- None – but please see earlier reports

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Mark Stinson Executive Manager - Governance
Telephone Number 07899 061277
Email: mark.stinson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: N

Exempt Decision: N 

Whether we deliver services through CPBS or some other model is discretionary, but some 
of the services delivered by CPBS are Mandatory Services.

Page 48



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Maxine O’Mahony- Executive Director of Strategy & Governance & 
Monitoring Officer

To: Council – 12 September 2018

Author: Rhonda Booth – Democratic Services Manager

Subject: Appointment of Independent Remuneration Panel

Purpose: To approve the recommended appointment of Members to the Independent 
Remuneration Panel 

 

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the following people be appointed to the South Holland District Council Independent 
Remuneration panel for the period 1 October 2018 – 30 September 2022 :-

 Malcolm Haddow
 Nicci Marzec; 
 Chris Penney; and
 Terence York

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 In accordance with Regulations made under the Local Government Act 2000, the Council 
must establish an Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) whose purpose is to make 
recommendations on members’ allowances prior to any change to the Scheme of 
Members’ Allowances. The tenure of the current panel ended in July 2017 and new 
appointments are therefore required. 

1.2 In accordance with the provisions of the Act, an advertisement for IRP members was 
published in June.  Four applications were received and a panel consisting of the 
Council’s Deputy Monitoring Officer and the Democratic Services Manager conducted 
interviews for the position on 23rd July.  The IRP has to consist of a minimum of three 
members but the Council has traditionally appointed more members thereby reducing the 
risk of an inquorate Panel.

1.3 All four were suitable candidates and met the statutory requirements. As such, the 
following provisional appointments have been made subject to Council approval:

 Malcolm Haddow;
 Nicci Marzec;
 Chris Penney; and
 Terence York

1.4 The New Panel will need to be convened shortly to begin the process of reviewing the 
Scheme of Member’ Allowances.

Page 49

Agenda Item 13.



2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 It is a legal requirement for the Council to appoint an Independent Remuneration Panel in 
order to review the Scheme of Members’ Allowances.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To enable appropriate appointments to be made ahead of the IRP meeting required in late 
2018. 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional 
& Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & Diversity/Human 
Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; Safeguarding; 
Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; Other. 
Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of 
these headings, these are identified below.

4.1 Constitution & Legal

4.1.1. To comply with The Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003

4.2 Financial 

4.2.1 An allowance is paid to members of the Independent Remuneration Panel. The current 
allowance is £545 per annum plus travelling expenses.

5.0      WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED
5.1 All

6.0      ACRONYMS 
6.1 None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Rhonda Booth– Democratic Services Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764705 
Email: rbooth@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:  No 
Exempt Decision:  No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: n/a

Page 50



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Rob Walker – Electoral Registration Officer

To: Council – 12 September 2018

Author: Rhonda Booth – Democratic Services Manager

Subject: Appointment of Deputy Electoral Registration Officer 

Purpose: To appoint a Deputy Electoral Registration Officer 

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the Democratic Services Manager be appointed as the Deputy Electoral Registration 
Officer to act in the absence of the Electoral Registration Officer

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 Under section 8 (2) of the Representation of the People Act 1983 Council must appoint an 
officer to the position of ‘Electoral Registration Officer’. This position is responsible for 
maintaining the Electoral Register for the area. The Executive Director of Place is the 
appointed Electoral Registration Officer in South Holland District Council.

1.2 Under Section 52(2) of the Representation of the People Act 1983, the Council may 
appoint a Deputy Electoral Registration Officer who is able to perform and exercise any of 
the duties and powers of the Electoral Registration Officer.

1.3 One of the roles of the Electoral Registration Officer is to hold a hearing in respect of any 
reviews of registration or any objections received for an application to be included on the 
Register of Electors. Reviews and objections can be made at any time during the life of 
the Register. For objections, the legislation provides that these hearings must be held no 
earlier than the third day and no later than the seventh day after the notice of objection 
was received. If a hearing is not held within this timescale then the Council will be in 
breach of the legislation.

1.4 Since the Council does not currently have a Deputy Electoral Registration Officer then 
there is a risk the Council could be in breach of the legislation if the Electoral registration 
Officer is absent for a period when a hearing needs to take place. Therefore it is 
recommended that permanent appointment is made to this post in order to remove that 
risk.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Approve the appointment of a Deputy Electoral Registration Officer to mitigate risks in the 
event that the Electoral Registration Officer is unavailable to deal with electoral register 
hearings within the statutory timetable.

2.2 Do Nothing- This would put the Council at increased risk of not being able to deal with 
electoral register hearings within the statutory timetable if the Electoral Registration Officer 
is unavailable.

Page 51

Agenda Item 14.



3.0   REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To mitigate risks in the event that the Electoral Registration Officer is unavailable to deal 
with electoral register hearings within the statutory timetable.

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional 
& Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & Diversity/Human 
Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; Safeguarding; 
Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; Other. 
Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of 
these headings, these are identified below.

4.1 Constitution & Legal

4.1.1. The appointment of the Deputy Electoral Registration Officer will mitigate risks in the event 
that the Electoral Registration Officer is unavailable.

4.2 Financial 

4.2.1. No Issues

4.3 Risk Management
 
4.3.1 Reduces the chance of the Council being without an Electoral Registration Officer and 

thereby reduces the risk the Council would be in breach of statutory time limits for dealing 
with electoral register hearings.

5.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

5.1 All Wards

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Rhonda Booth – Democratic Services Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764705 
Email: rbooth@sholland.gov.uk

Page 52



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Monitoring Officer – Maxine O’Mahony

To: South Holland District Council Wednesday, 12 September 2018 

(Author: Jacqui Berridge Lawyer)  

Subject Constitution

Purpose: To consider variations to the Constitution 

Recommendations: 

(a) Minor variations to the Constitution – That paragraph 3 of Article 14 of the 
Constitution, which deals with minor changes to the Constitution, be amended as shown 
in Appendix A to this report 

(b) Policies submitted to the Governance and Audit Committee - That items 10 and 13 
of the terms of reference of the Governance and Audit Committee be amended as shown 
in Appendix B to this report.

(c) Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 - 
Schedule 1 Functions - That the Constitution be amended so that the functions detailed 
in Appendix C to this report are allocated to the decision-making bodies detailed in 
Appendix C to this report. 

(d) Contract Procedure Rules 

 That the tables at paragraph 9.1.3 of the Contract Procedure Rules and page 127 
of the Constitution be amended as shown at Appendix D(a) to this report.

 That paragraph 4.2 of the Financial Management Standards be amended as 
shown in Appendix D(b) to this report.  

(e) Standing Orders 

 That Standing Order no. 35 be amended as shown at Appendix E to this report.

 That Standing Order no.19A be added as shown at Appendix E to this report.   

 That Standing Order no.29A be added as shown at Appendix E to this report  

(f) Appointment of Authorised Officers, Inspectors etc - That paragraphs 14 and 15 of 
Part 3 Section F1 be amended as shown in Appendix F to this report.

(g) Substitution Scheme – That Part 3 Section D (Delegation to Committees) be amended 
as shown in Appendix G to this report to clarify the Council’s substitution scheme.

(h) Virements / transfers – That paragraphs 3.6, 3.8.3 and 3.11.3 of the Financial 
Procedure Rules be amended as shown in Appendix H to this report.

Page 53

Agenda Item 15.



(i) Leader and Deputy Leader 

 That the additional definition of “Deputy Leader detailed in paragraph 3.25 of this 
report be approved and the Constitution be amended accordingly

 That all other references to the words “Deputy Leader” be clarified to ensure that 
it is clear whether the references is to Deputy Leader of the Council, Deputy 
Leader of the Cabinet or both.  

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council's current Constitution was approved by full Council at its meeting on 20 
January 2016. Under Article 14 of the Constitution any proposed changes may be 
approved only by full Council unless the change is: 

 a minor variation; or
 required to be made to remove any inconsistency or ambiguity; or 
 required to be made so as to put into effect any decision of the Council or its 

committees or the Cabinet.

1.2 In such circumstances the variation may be made by the Monitoring Officer and come into 
force immediately, but must be reported to full Council as soon as reasonably possible.  
Any change then continues to have effect only if full Council agrees. 

1.3 All other variations must be submitted to Council for consideration.

1.4 This report seeks approval for the continuation of 1 minor variation made by the Monitoring 
Officer, and seeks full Council approval for a number of non-minor variations. 

2.0 MINOR VARIATION MADE BY THE MONITORING OFFICER 

2.1 Paragraph 5.1 of the Contract Procedure Rules was incorrectly numbered 1.0 and this has 
now been amended.

3.0 PROPOSED VARIATIONS BEING SUBMITTED TO COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL 

(a) Minor typographical, referencing and numbering errors

3.1 In order to reduce administrative burden it is suggested that the Monitoring Officer be given 
delegated authority to make minor typographical, referencing and numbering amendments 
to the Constitution without having to report these back to Council. To enable this, it is 
suggested that paragraph 3 of Article 14 of the Constitution, which deals with minor 
changes to the Constitution, be amended as shown in Appendix A. 

 (b)    Policies submitted to the Governance and Audit Committee

3.2 The Governance and Audit Committee has been established to monitor governance, risk 
management, and internal control arrangements at the Council, and to provide independent 
assurance that these are effective and efficient. 

3.3 Part of the remit of the Governance and Audit Committee is as follows:

“10.to monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council.”

Page 54



 “13. to review allegations from whistleblowers; and the anti-fraud and anti-corruption 
strategy”. 

3.4 As the terms of reference for the Committee only refer to “monitoring” the risk policy and 
“reviewing” the anti-fraud and anti-corruption strategy, it may be argued that any strategy 
then needs to go to full Council for approval.   

3.5 In the interests of efficiency it is suggested that the risk management policy and the anti-
fraud and anti-corruption strategy should not only be monitored/reviewed by, but also 
approved by, the Governance and Audit Committee, and that the Committee should be 
able to deal with any additional policies that relate to governance and audit matters.  It is 
therefore recommended that items 10 and 13 of the terms of reference of the Governance 
and Audit Committee be amended as shown in Appendix B. 

(c)    Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 - 
Schedule 1 Functions

3.6 Under section 9D of the Local Government Act 2000 any function of the Council which is 
not specified in regulations is the responsibility of the Cabinet.  Schedule 1 of the Local 
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as amended) sets 
out the functions which are not to be the responsibility of the Cabinet, and which must 
therefore be allocated elsewhere. 

3.7 Most of the functions referred to in Schedule 1 of the Regulations have been allocated 
specifically within the Constitution to an appropriate Committee etc, but the table in 
Appendix C shows those functions which have not been allocated specifically.  The table 
includes the parent body to which it is suggested that each function be allocated.  

3.8 It should be noted that some functions have already been delegated to officers, but it is 
important that the Constitution is clear on which parent body is responsible for each 
function.  

 (d)    Contract Procedure Rules  

3.9  (i) Tendering procedures - The table at paragraph 9.1.3 of the Contract Procedure Rules, 
and the same table at page 127 of the Constitution (Contract Standing Orders), sets out the 
tendering procedures which must be followed for purchases within the values shown in the 
first column of the table.

3.10 The table currently requires low value contracts to be purchased using a purchase card, 
however purchase cards should only be used for low value/frequent or regular transactions 
such as train fares.  The table also currently fails to clarify that contractual spend should 
always be subject to a purchase order, raised and approved, before the order is placed with 
the supplier.  Finally, the table needs to be amended so that it is clear that tendering is 
carried out via the E-Tendering Portal.  

3.11 It is therefore recommended that both tables be amended as shown in paragraph (a) of 
Appendix D.

3.12 (ii) Paying for Work, Goods and Services – sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) of paragraph 
4.2.1 of the Financial Management Standards are currently incorrect because they state 
that official orders are not required for written contracts or periodical payments such as 
rents and rates.  In fact purchase orders are required for all contractual supplies and 

Page 55



periodical payments.  The paragraph also does not read well and it is therefore suggested 
that the paragraph be amended as shown in paragraph (b) of Appendix D(b). 

(e) Postponement of full Council, and cancellation/postponement of Committee and 
Cabinet meetings  

3.13 Following the poor weather earlier in the year when a Council meeting was postponed it is 
considered that greater clarity is required in Standing Orders relating to the postponement 
and/or cancellation of full Council, Committee and Cabinet meetings. 

3.14 It is therefore suggested that standing orders be amended as shown in Appendix E.

3.15 Part VI of Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows a local authority to make 
Standing Orders for the regulation of their proceedings, and allows variation or revocation 
of such Standing Orders. Under Standing Order no. 53 any motion to add to, vary or revoke 
Standing Orders must, when proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion 
to the next ordinary meeting of the Council.  This requirement does not apply to any report 
designed to amend the Constitution which has been approved by the Monitoring Officer.  
The recommendations have the approval of the Monitoring Officer, and therefore if 
members approve the recommendations there is no need for the recommendations to 
stand adjourned to the next meeting. 

(f) Appointment of Authorised Officers, Inspectors etc

3.16 Under Part 3 Section F1 paragraph 15 of the Constitution, Chief Officers have general 
powers to undertake various functions.  Under paragraph 14, officers with delegated 
powers can authorise staff within their control to undertake the functions delegated to them.  
In some instances legislation requires that staff carrying out functions which come within 
the delegations are appointed as “Authorised Officers” or “Inspectors” etc.  It is 
recommended that paragraphs 14 and 15 be amended, as shown in Appendix F, so as to 
clarify that staff are appointed as “Authorised Officers”, “Inspectors” etc where necessary.

(g) Substitution Scheme

3.17 The Council operates a substitution scheme in relation to the membership of the Planning 
Committee, the Performance Monitoring Panel, the Policy Development Panel, the 
Chairman’s Panel and the Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Panel, but this is not fully 
referred to in the Constitution.  For clarity it is recommended that Part 3 Section D 
(Delegations to Committees) of the Constitution be amended by the addition of paragraphs 
1.5 to 1.8 shown in Appendix G, with the additional consequential amendments also 
detailed in Appendix G. The wording reflects the scheme as it is currently operated. 

(h) Virements / transfers 

3.18 The Financial Procedure Rules set out the circumstances when virements can be made 
from one budget to another (paragraphs 3.5 to 3.8), and when transfers can be made from 
reserves to budgets (paragraph 3.11.3).  The Rules also set out who can make such 
virements/transfers.  

3.19 Virements between budgets can be made by Senior Managers up to £20,000 (subject to 
notifying the S151 Officer); by Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers up to £68,000 
(subject to approval by the S151 Officer); by Cabinet in excess of £68,000; and by Council 
where any transfer will result in an excess of 30% of a directorate gross budget.  

Page 56



3.20 Transfers from reserves to budgets can be made by the Executive Management Team up 
to £68,000 (with approval of the S151 Officer and subject to any written direction given by 
the Leader); by the Cabinet from £68,000.01 to £100,000; and by Council in excess of 
£100,000.

3.21 It is recommended that Rule 3.11.3 be amended so that the transfer of reserves up to 
£68,000 is delegated to Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers (rather than to the full 
Executive Management Team). 

3.22 Rule 3.8.3 prevents capital budget from being vired to a revenue budget heads.  It is 
recommended that this paragraph be amended to make it clear that virements are 
permitted from revenue to capital.

3.23 It is also recommended that paragraph 3.6 be amended so as to allow the Section 151 
Officer to amend the capital programme, and vire between capital budgets up to £100,000

3.24 Full details of the proposed amendments are shown in Appendix H.

(i) Leader and Deputy Leader 

3.25 “Leader” is defined in the Constitution as “such person as the Council shall so elect to be 
Leader of the Cabinet”.  This should read “Leader of the Council”. It is suggested that a 
further definition of “Deputy Leader” be added as follows:

“Deputy Leader” - such person as the Leader may appoint to the role of Deputy Leader of 
the Council and such person as the Leader may appoint to the role of Deputy Leader of the 
Cabinet”

3.26 It is then recommended that all other references to the words “Deputy Leader” be clarified 
to ensure that it is clear whether the reference is to Deputy Leader of the Council, Deputy 
Leader of the Cabinet or both. 

4. OPTIONS

4.1  Members have the option to approve or not approve the variations, or to require alternative 
variations.  

5 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

5.1 To remove anomalies, address minor typographical and numbering issues, and to ensure
the Constitution is kept up to date with changing circumstances.

6 EXPECTED BENEFITS

6.1 Regular updates to the Constitution will ensure that it remains fit for purpose. 

7 IMPLICATIONS

7.1 In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 

Page 57



one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

7.2 Constitutional & Legal

7.2.1 Amending the Constitution is a function that is reserved to full Council. 

8 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

8.1 None 

9 ACRONYMS

9.1 None 

Background papers:-    The Council’s  Constitution which is available on the Council’s website. 

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Jacqui Berridge Lawyer
Telephone Number
Email: jacqui.berridge@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No (n/a)

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A – proposed amendments to paragraph 3 of Article 14 (Review of the Constitution)

Appendix B – proposed amendments to items 10 and 13 of the terms of reference of the 
Governance and Audit Committee 

Appendix C – proposed allocation of functions detailed in Schedule 1 of the Local Authorities 
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 and not already allocated   

Appendix D – (a) proposed amendments to table at paragraph 9.1.3 of the Contract Procedure 
Rules and page 127 of the Constitution and (b) proposed amended paragraph 4.2 of the Financial 
Management Standards 

Appendix E – proposed amended Standing Order no. 35 and proposed new Standing Orders nos. 
19A and 29A relating to postponement and/or cancellation of meetings 

Appendix F – proposed amendments to paragraphs 14 and 15 of Part 3 Section F

Appendix G - (a) proposed additional paragraphs 1.5 to 1.8 to Part 3 Section D (Delegation to 
Committees) and (b) further consequential amendments 

APPENDIX H – proposed amendments to paragraphs 3.6, 3.8.3 and 3.11.3 of the Financial 
Procedure Rules

Page 58



APPENDIX A – proposed amendments to paragraph 3 of Article 14 (Review and revision of 
the Constitution)

“3.0 Minor Changes

3.1 If, in the reasonable opinion of the Monitoring Officer, a change is:

a) A minor variation; or

b) Required to be made to remove any inconsistency or ambiguity; or

c) Required to be made so as to put into effect any decision of the Council or its 
committees or the Cabinet,

then the Monitoring Officer may make such a change. Any such change made by the 
Monitoring Officer shall come into force with immediate effect but shall (unless a minor 
typographical, referencing or numbering change) be referred to full Council as soon as 
is reasonably possible and shall continue to have effect only if full Council agree. Minor 
typographical, referencing and numbering changes shall not require the approval of full 
Council.”

Page 59



APPENDIX B – proposed amendments to items 10 and 13 of the terms of reference of the 
Governance and Audit Committee 

“10.  To monitor and approve policies for the effective development and operation of 
risk management and corporate governance in the Council.

“13.  To review allegations from whistleblowers; and to review and approve all 
Council policies and strategies that relate to the prevention of fraud and corruption 
including (but not limited to) policies on counter fraud, whistleblowing and money 
laundering.”

Page 60



APPENIDX C – proposed allocation of functions detailed in Schedule 1 of the Local 
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 and not already 
allocated  

Function Schedule 1 
reference 

Parent body to which 
it is recommended 
that the function be 
allocated

Functions relating to health and safety at work – 
functions under any of the relevant statutory provisions 
within the meaning of Part 1 (health, safety and welfare 
in connection with work, and control of dangerous 
substances) of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 
1974, to the extent that those functions are discharged 
otherwise than in the authority’s capacity as an 
employer

Para C Licensing Committee 
(as in previous 
Constitution)

Functions relating to public rights of way (in so far as 
they relate to District Council functions)

Part i of Para I Planning Committee) 
as in previous 
Constitution) 

Power to appoint staff and determine terms and 
conditions 

Part ii of para I Council (as in previous 
Constitution) 

Duty to designate officer as the head of the authority’s 
paid service and to provide staff etc 

Part ii of Para I Council (as in previous 
Constitution) 

Duty to designate officer as the monitoring officer and 
to provide staff etc 

Part ii of Part I Council (as in previous 
Constitution) 

Duty to make arrangements for proper administration of 
financial affairs etc 

Part ii of Para I Council (as in previous 
Constitution) 

Powers relating to the protection of important 
hedgerows

Part ii of Part I Planning Committee 
(as in previous 
Constitution) 

Powers relating to the preservation of trees Part ii of Part I Planning Committee 
(as in previous 
Constitution) 

Powers relating to complaints about high hedges Part ii of Part I Council (as in previous 
Constitution) 

Page 61



APPENDIX D – (a) proposed amendments to table at paragraph 9.1.3 of the Contract 
Procedure Rules and page 127 of the Constitution and (b) proposed amendments to 
paragraph 4.2 of the Financial Management Standards 

(a) Proposed amendments to table at paragraph 9.1.3 of the Contract Procedure Rules and page 
127 of the Constitution

Works Supply of 
Goods, 
Materials and 
Services 

Consultants Tendering Procedure 

Up to £4,999 Up to £4,000 Up to £4,999 One quote – this should be a local provider 
unless not appropriate.  This should be done on 
a Purchase Card where possible. A purchase 
order should be raised. 

£5,000 to 
£24,999 

£5,000 to 
£24,999

At least three quotes shall be sought. Local 
providers must have been given an

Opportunity to provide a quote.  A purchase 
order should be raised.

£25,000 to 
£74,999 

£25,0000 to 
£74,999

£25,000 to

£74,999

At least five written quotations shall be

sought. Local providers must have been given 
an opportunity to provide a quote.  A purchase 
order should be raised.

£75,000 up 
to EU

Procurement

Threshold

£75,000 up to 
EU

Procurement

Threshold

£75,000 up to 
EU

Procurement

Threshold

Open tender via E-Tendering Portal including 
Contracts Finder a social value clause must be 
built into the specification and contract.  A 
purchase order should be raised.

Above 
£4,104,394

(EU 
threshold*)

Above 
£164,176

(EU threshold)

Above 
£164,176

(EU threshold)

EU Procedure – via E-Tendering Portal & OJEU 
notice. Local social value clause must be built 
into the specification of the contract.  A 
purchase order should be raised.

Page 62



(b) Proposed amended paragraph 4.2 of the Financial Management Standards

“4.2 Ordering and paying for work, goods and services

4.2.1 The following provisions shall apply: 

(a) Official orders shall be issued for all work to be done or goods or services to be 
supplied, except for petty cash purchases, or such other expenditure as the S151 
Officer may approve, in addition to Contract Procedure Rules 

(b) Verbal orders shall only be given in cases of emergency and these shall always be 
confirmed by an official order not later than the next working day and marked 
accordingly. 

(c) All orders shall prescribe quantities, adequate description and price, or basis of 
price

(d) Official orders raised shall be in the form approved by the S151 Officer. 
(e) Each appropriate officer shall be responsible for the official orders issued from 

his/her section.
(f) Each appropriate officer shall notify the S151 Officer of the names of those 

members of his/her staff authorised to initiate official orders in the computerised 
ordering system”

Page 63



APPENDIX E – proposed amended Standing Order no. 35 and proposed new Standing 
Orders nos. 19A and 29A relating to postponement and/or cancellation of meetings

Proposed amended Standing Order no. 35 (Standing Orders relating to Committees) 

“35. Postponement or Cancellation of Committee Meeting

35.1 The Chairman of a Committee may postpone or cancel a meeting of the Committee at 
any time after consultation with the Vice-Chairman of that Committee and the Chief 
Executive, provided that any such postponement or cancellation should, if possible, be at 
least seven days before the scheduled date of the meeting.  Where exceptional 
circumstances apply and the Chairman of the Committee in consultation with the Vice-
Chairman of the Committee and the Chief Executive considers that attendance at a 
convened meeting of the Committee would involve health and safety issues (eg inclement 
weather) the Chairman of the Committee may postpone the meeting at shorter notice.  
Following any postponement or cancellation, notification must immediately be given to all 
members of the Council and to the press, and notice of the postponement or cancellation 
must be posted at the Council Offices and on the Council’s website.  Where a meeting is 
postponed, no less than five clear working days’ notice (or such other period as may be 
required by law) shall be given of the new date for the meeting.”

Proposed new Standing Order no. 19A (Standing Orders relating to procedures at full Council).  It 
is suggested that this relate only to postponement of meetings in exceptional circumstances, and 
not to cancellation, as it is not considered appropriate to allow the cancellation of full Council 
meetings when members have Constitutional rights including submitting questions without notice:

 “19A. Postponement of full Council Meeting 

Where exceptional circumstances apply and the Chairman of the Council, following 
consultation with the Vice-Chairman of the Council, the Chief Executive and the Leaders of 
the political groups, considers that attendance at a convened meeting of the full Council 
would involve health and safety issues (eg inclement weather) the Chairman of the Council 
may postpone the meeting.  Following postponement, notification must immediately be 
given to all members of the Council and to the press, and notice of the postponement must 
be posted at the Council Offices and on the Council’s website.  Where a meeting is 
postponed, no less than five clear working days’ notice (or such other period as may be 
required by law) shall be given of the new date for the meeting.”

Proposed new Standing Order no. 29A (Standing Orders relating to the Council and the Executive) 

 “29A. Cancellation or Postponement of Cabinet Meeting 

The Leader may cancel a meeting of the Cabinet before the agenda has been issued if 
there is a lack of business for the meeting.  Where exceptional circumstances apply and 
the Leader considers that attendance at a convened meeting of the Cabinet would involve 
health and safety issues (eg inclement weather) the Leader may postpone the meeting. 
Following postponement, notification must immediately be given to all members of the 
Council and to the press, and notice of the postponement must be posted at the Council 
Offices and on the Council’s website.  Where a meeting is postponed, no less than five 
clear working days’ notice (or such other period as may be required by law) shall be given 
of the new date for the meeting.”

Page 64



APPENDIX F – proposed amendments to paragraphs 14 and 15 of Part 3 Section F

“14. Any officer with delegated power has power to authorise staff within his/her control to 
carry out powers delegated to him/her, subject to any conditions or provisos which are 
imposed.  For the avoidance of doubt wherever an officer delegates a function under this 
paragraph, or any other paragraph of this Constitution, this power shall include the power to 
appoint the relevant officer as an “Authorised Officer” or an “Inspector” or such other title as 
may be required by legislation.”

“15.  Each Chief officer shall have the following general powers, and for the avoidance of 
doubt each Chief Officer is hereby appointed as an “Authorised Officer” or an “Inspector” or 
any other relevant title where legislation requires such appointment in order to undertake 
the following functions:

Page 65



APPENDIX G – (a) proposed additional paragraphs 1.5 to 1.8 to Part 3 Section D 
(Delegation to Committees) and (b) further consequential amendments 

(a) Proposed additional paragraphs 1.5 to 1.8 to Part 3 Section D (Delegation to 
Committees)

 “1.5 Substitution of members is permitted for the Planning Committee subject to the 
following:

(a) substitutions will be for individual meetings only
(b) substitutes will be appointed by group leaders or their representatives for that 

political group.  
(c) notice of the substitution by a group leader or his/her representative must be 

submitted to the Senior Legal Officer by noon on the day of the meeting.
(d) substitute members will have all of the powers and duties of any ordinary 

members of the Committee but will not be able to exercise any special powers or 
duties exercisable by that person they are substituting (eg acting as Chairman or 
Vice-Chairman).

(e) substitute members may attend meetings in that capacity only to take the place 
of the ordinary member for whom they are the designated substitute, and where 
the ordinary member will be absent from the whole of the meeting.

(f) only members who have attended approved planning training during the previous 
twelve months will be eligible to attend as a substitute 

1.6. Substitution of members is permitted for the Performance Monitoring Panel and the 
Policy Development Panel subject to the following: 

(a) substitutions will be for individual meetings only
(b) substitutes will be appointed by group leaders or their representatives for that 

political group from those members who are not on the Cabinet or on the relevant 
Panel   

(c) notice of the substitution by a group leader or his/her representative must be 
submitted to the Senior Legal Officer by noon on the day of the meeting.

(d) substitute members will have all of the powers and duties of any ordinary 
members of the Committee but will not be able to exercise any special powers or 
duties exercisable by that person they are substituting (eg acting as Chairman or 
Vice-Chairman).

(e) substitute members may attend meetings in that capacity only to take the place 
of the ordinary member for whom they are the designated substitute, and where 
the ordinary member will be absent from the whole of the meeting.

1.7 Substitution of members is also permitted for:

 The Chairman’s Panel for individual meetings (including for the Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee), so long as the substitute is a 
member of the Planning Committee and the political balance is retained.  
Substitutions will apply for individual meetings only but there is no requirement 
for the Senior Legal Officer to be notified. 

 The Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Panel where each Council may 
make such substitution from a pool of substitutes previously appointed by the 
Council.  Paragraph 1.5 (a) to (e) above will apply.

Page 66



1.8 Substitutions are not permitted for:

 Governance and Audit Committee
 Standards Panel 
 Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Appeals Committee 
 Appeals Panel 
 Grievance panel 
 Settlement Agreements Sub-Committee 
 Licensing Committee whether meeting in its usual role as a Committee of the 

Licensing Authority, Licensing Panel 
 Committee of the Licensing Authority 
 Panel of the Committee of the Licensing Authority” 

(b) Further consequential amendments

All existing references to substitution schemes be removed from the Committee tables in Part 3 
Section D.

Apart from Council and Cabinet, the following words be inserted into the second column of each 
Committee (after reference to the number of members and the quorum): 

“Substitutions: see paragraphs 1.5 to 1.8 above”

Page 67



APPENDIX H – proposed amendments to paragraphs 3.6, 3.8.3 and 3.11.3 of the Financial 
Procedure Rules 

“3.4.4 The following limits have been approved for the authorisation of Budget transfers 
(virements):

3.5 Senior Managers

(a) Up to £20,000.00, between one budget head to another (standard groupings) for which they are 
responsible, during the financial year after notification to the Section 151 Officer.

3.6 Chief Officers/Deputy Chief Officers

(b) Up to £68,000.00, between any one Budget head to another (Standard groupings) for which 
they are responsible, during the financial year with written approval of the Section 151 Officer.
(c) Up to £68,000.00 in relation to grant funding, where the Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer will 
have the power, subject to consultation with The Section 151 Officer and any directions given by 
the Cabinet Member, to agree to any terms or restrictions applied by the grant funding to approve 
the receipt and spend of grant funding.
(d) Up to £68,000.00 in relation to expenditure which generates additional income, where the Chief 
Officer/Deputy Chief Officer will have the power, subject to consultation with The Section 151 
Officer and any directions given by the relevant Cabinet Members, approve additional expenditure 
that leads to the generation of a net surplus within the financial year
(e) The Section 151 Officer shall have power to amend the capital programme and vire between 
capital budgets up to £100,000 (without the need to submit the matter to Cabinet under paragraph 
3.7 below) following consultation with the responsible Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer and 
subject to no written directions to the contrary from the Leader

3.7 Cabinet

(f) Individual transfers between Budget heads in excess of £68,001.00 following a joint report by 
the Section 151 Officer and the responsible Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer. The joint report 
must explain the implications in the current and future financial year.
(g) To agree to any terms or restrictions applied by the funder and to approve the receipt and 
spend of any grant funding between £68,000.01 and £100,000.00.

3.8 Full Council
(h) To agree to any terms or restrictions applied by the funder and to approve the receipt and 
spend of grant funding above £100,000.
(i) Any transfer which results in an excess of 30% of a directorate gross Budget.

______________________________________________________________________________

“3.8.3 A Capital Budget cannot be transferred to a revenue Budget head. Virements can be made 
from revenue budgets to capital budgets.”

______________________________________________________________________________

Page 68



“3.11.3 The following limits be approved for the authorisation of transfers between reserves and 
Budgets:

Chief Officers/Deputy Chief Officers:

(a) The Executive Management Team shall, Any Chief Officer and any Deputy Chief Officer shall, 
subject to the prior approval by or on behalf of the Section 151 Officer and to any written directions 
given by the Leader, have power to approve the re-allocation of un-allocated reserve balances up 
to £68,000.00

Cabinet:

(b) To approve the re-allocation of un-allocated reserve balances between £68,000.01 and 
£100,000.00

Full Council:

(c) To approve the re-allocation of un-allocated reserve balances greater than £100,000.01”

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Chris Brewis

To: Council – 12 September 2018

(Author: Councillor Christopher Brewis)

Subject: Health Scrutiny Committee  for Lincolnshire, May 2018

Purpose: To advise the Council of matters concerning the Health Scrutiny Committee 
for Lincolnshire.

Recommendation: 

1) That the report be noted. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council’s Constitution provides that ordinary meetings of the Council will receive 
written reports from Councillors who represent the authority on Outside Bodies.  In 
particular it is proposed that reports should be submitted where matters considered or 
determined by the outside body may have an impact on the Council or affect the Council’s 
stewardship of the District.  

2.0 HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE

2.1 Paediatric Services at Pilgrim, Hospital, Boston.  

As members are, I am sure aware, there has been a question mark over the future 
provision of paediatric services at Boston's Pilgrim Hospital, largely arising because of a 
shortage (both locally and nationally) of qualified paediatric medical personnel, thereby 
causing concerns about safety.

Recruitment of personnel to ensure the adequate complement of staff of the various sorts is 
available, is proving both a local and a national problem, and increasing numbers of 
medical personnel from outside of the United Kingdom have been returning to other 
countries in the EU and beyond, because, partly of their uncertainty about the future.

In the short term, there is a sufficiency of staff using 'locums’ (temporary staff) but that may 
not be a long term solution.  Locums, though qualified, will not have the close knowledge of 
the circumstances of the patients with which they are dealing, thereby necessitating 
familiarisation with the conditions, problems and issues which are under consideration.

Shortages of neonatal, obstetric and other disciplines remain severe.

The overall position as at 18th April this year was that in Lincolnshire there were 20.4 whole 
time equivalent people in post, as against 28.65 whole time equivalent establishment 
required.  The Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health recommend the establishment 

Page 71

Agenda Item 16.a)



should be a minimum of 23 full time equivalents.

Increasing use of services in the community to enable more unwell children to remain at 
home is happening, since keeping children in hospital medium or long term should be seen 
as a last resort rather than as a norm.

Members will realise that the adverse cost implications of any major relocation of services 
to Lincoln, for example, would be severe.  More and more people, because of the extreme 
difficulty in getting to Lincoln from Boston, Skegness and even Spalding, would result in an 
even larger proportion of patients opting for Peterborough City Hospital or the Queen 
Elizabeth Hospital, King's Lynn.  Patient choice though has an added problem, in that 
people opting to go 'out of county', as is their right, not only loses funds for the NHS within 
Lincolnshire, but in many cases actually costs more money, than does in-county provision.

Currently the amount of expenditure for hospital services in the South Clinical 
Commissioning Group, in which almost all the General Practice services of our District fall, 
was roughly 30% Boston, 60% Peterborough and 10% King's Lynn.

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) conducted their latest review of United Lincolnshire 
Hospitals NHS Trust in February 2018, and the report emanating from the inspection is 
expected shortly.

2.2 Winter resilience.  

The bed occupancy during winter was exceptionally high.

Good news was that influenza prevention jabs had increased, and that three quarters of the 
eligible population were now receiving their jabs.

To enable better planning for the 2018-2019 winter period, the plans for the service were 
being signed off in July of 2018, to enable all personnel to have better familiarisation of 
what to do when a major problem crops up.

DToC (Delayed Transfers of Care) remained an issue, and the responsibility, whilst 
principally with the NHS, meant that better cooperation between the hospitals and adult 
social care should help to reduce this recurrent problem.

A category of ruling that patients arriving at Accident and Emergency were 'fit for chair', 
could enable ambulances and their crews to be released more quickly back into the 
community.

2.3 ACES.  

Many more people, both locally and wider afield, continue to opt for using the Anglian 
Community Eye Service at Wisbech for ophthalmological procedures, whose reputation has 
spread far and wide. 

2.4 Grantham A and E Overnight.  

As members will be aware, this remains closed overnight for the foreseeable future.

Page 72



2.5 Recruitment and retention issues.

Recruiting staff for the NHS in Lincolnshire remains an issue.  From February's report, 
members will now know that there is an intention to have a full blown medical school 
attached to the University of Lincoln, which long term is excellent news.

2.6 Missed appointments.  

Sorry to keep on about it, but missed doctors' appointments and hospital appointments 
remains a serious issue.  The amount of wasted doctor and nurse time by patients just not 
'turning up' for their appointments is becoming the stuff of legends.     

2.7 Non emergency ambulance transport.  

This service is now run by Thames Ambulance Services Ltd.  

We have had further presentations from them, and under new management, I feel that 
improvements are being made, not least in recovering the ground lost by damaging 
voluntary car schemes with imposing ridiculous conditions on voluntary drivers.  The new 
management are reporting frequently to us, and have done much to re-recruit the 
volunteers.     

2.8 JACP.  

Once again I mention the Joint Ambulance Conveyance Project, with retained Fire and 
Rescue staff working together with Ambulance personnel, which has worked very well 
indeed in its three trial areas, of Woodhall Spa, Stamford and Long Sutton.  Without 
question lives have been saved, the scheme is being rolled out elsewhere, and Long Sutton 
retained fire station did more calls-out for non-fire emergencies last year than any other 
retained fire station in the whole country.

Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue are always recruiting more 'retained', or part time fire staff, 
and if any member knows of anyone who might be interested, please get in touch with Fire 
and Rescue services.

2.9 United Lincolnshire Hospitals Trust.  

The 'overspend' in the last financial year, as you now know, is almost into nine figures!

Background papers:- None

Appendices        None

Page 73

%5CBCF01Democratic%20ServicesCommitteeCommitteeReport%20Guide2014THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Lynn Eldred – Lead Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number: 01775 764626
Email: leldred@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 
Exempt Decision: No 

This report relates to a Discretionary Service

Page 74



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Chris Brewis

To: Council – 12 September 2018

(Author: Councillor Christopher Brewis)

Subject: Health Scrutiny Committee  for Lincolnshire, July 2018

Purpose: To advise the Council of matters concerning the Health Scrutiny Committee 
for Lincolnshire.

Recommendation: 

1) That the report be noted. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council’s Constitution provides that ordinary meetings of the Council will receive 
written reports from Councillors who represent the authority on Outside Bodies.  In 
particular it is proposed that reports should be submitted where matters considered or 
determined by the outside body may have an impact on the Council or affect the Council’s 
stewardship of the District.  

2.0 HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE

2.1 Children and Young Persons Services at United Lincolnshire
Hospitals NHS Trust.

As previously reported, there is a safety issue regarding the staffing of paediatric 
services across Lincolnshire, and specifically at the Pilgrim Hospital, Boston.

Whilst I am aware that many of our residents (perhaps over 70 per cent of people 
from the South Clinical Commissioning Group Area) use either Queen Elizabeth 
Hospital, King's Lynn, or Peterborough City Hospital, a significant number of our 
residents look to Boston Hospital.

There is a national shortage of medical personnel in a number of disciplines, and 
that is unlikely to improve significantly in the short term. The announcement that 
there is going to be a Medical School attached to Lincoln University is most 
welcome, but of course it takes roughly ten years to train a doctor, so that is very
much a long term help to what has proved an endemic problem. The service is a 
constantly changing scenario, not helped by the number of staff who choose to be 
'locums', rather than permanent staff, because it gives them more freedom to 
choose shifts, and locum staff cost the NHS Trust more money.

The significant factor is risk. The position at present is fragile, but at least for the 
time being, as I write in mid-July, the intention is to maintain the service at both 
sites, Boston and Lincoln.

Page 75

Agenda Item 16.b)



The full report is available if any member requires it.

One interesting fact which emerged is that the home birth rate in Lincolnshire 
exceeds the national average.

I have pointed out, as have others, that were services for children to be 
concentrated on one site, probably Lincoln, the drift of patient to Grimsby, King's 
Lynn and Peterborough would increase, thereby adversely affecting the financial 
status of the Lincolnshire services.

2.2      Clinical Commissioning Groups – Future of the Transformation of
Health Services in the County.

There are four CCGs (Clinical Commissioning Groups) in Lincolnshire, East, South, 
South West and West.

A few years ago there was one Primary Care Trust, but that evolved into the four 
CCGs we now have.

One of the anomalies is that the two Health Centres in Holbeach belong to different 
CCGs – an unique circumstance for any town of that size in the County!

CCGs, as their name suggests, are responsible for the commissioning of Health 
services in the County.

They cannot actually 'direct' people, only encourage. Patient choice remains 
inviolate, and many people, for example, use Anglian Community Eye Services in 
Wisbech, because of their outstanding reputation. There are equally people from 
outside Lincolnshire who opt to be treated here, as there are procedures and 
disciplines for which Lincolnshire has an excellent name.

The intention is to retain the four – because there is no alternative under the 
present arrangements. However . . .There is to be one executive team. Possibly by 
the time you read this, there will be one accountable officer, for which the business 
case has already been submitted.

The executives will be amalgamated in the interest of efficiency and better patient 
experiences and results.

By October or November 2018 there will be a single committee. The four CCGs are 
attempting to be frank and realistic, and engender a fundamental 'cultural shift' 
away from the status quo.

One thing which is to be stressed is an optimistic shift towards encouraging young 
people to respect the NHS and take steps to ensure their own good health.

Public Health Annual Report. If anyone would like a copy of this excellent report into 
the Public Health of Lincolnshire, I would (a) encourage members to read it, and (b) 
obtain a copy, hard or electronic, if members so require.

Page 76



I remain ever hopeful and optimistic that the day will not be too distant when we 
have a real national HEALTH service, and not a national ILLNESS RESPONSE 
service! Prevention is better than cure, in my humble opinion.

I give you an anecdotal experience of mine. A resident in Long Sutton said "Did I 
not think it was dreadful that pensioners were using their bus passes to go out for 
the day and have walks along the North Norfolk Coast?" I said that it was a 
comparatively inexpensive way of keeping people much more fit and active, and out 
of their local Health Centre or Accident and Emergency! They said they had not 
looked at it that way!

Conclusion. There is a national shortage of GPs, and medical staff, and we need to 
raise the possibility of a career in the caring services in Year 5 or Year 6, not Year 
10 or Year 11 when many minds are already fixed.

If anyone wishes to have a copy of the reports to the July meeting forwarded to 
them, hard or electronic, please let me know.

Background papers:- None

Appendices        None
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Lynn Eldred – Lead Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number: 01775 764626
Email: leldred@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 
Exempt Decision: No 

This report relates to a Discretionary Service

Page 77

%5CBCF01Democratic%20ServicesCommitteeCommitteeReport%20Guide2014THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	8.a) Policy Development Panel 26 June 2018
	Minutes

	8.b) Licensing Committee 19 July 2018
	Minutes

	8.c) Committee of the Licensing Authority 19 July 2018
	Minutes

	8.d) Planning Committee 25 July 2018
	Minutes

	10. Key Decision Plan
	11. Memorandum of Agreement
	12. Compass Point Business Services Options
	13. Appointment of Independent Remuneration Panel
	14. Appointment of Deputy Electoral Registration Officer
	15. Constitution
	16.a) Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire - May 2018
	16.b) Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire - July 2018

